
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  
Bresnan Meeting Center 

706 Kenwood Road 
Champaign, Illinois 

Wednesday, May 24, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. PRESENTATION 
 

1. OpenGov – Software Presentation 
 

C. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC Comments limited to not more than three (3) minutes. 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately.  

 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Executive Session, April 26, 2023 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Amendment to License Agreement with the City of Champaign for Skelton Park 
 

2. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Champaign for Skelton Park 
 

3. Approval of Amendment to Agreement with Visit Champaign County Now Known as Experience 
Champaign Urbana 
 

4. Approval of Accepting Bid for Lights at Porter Park Parking Lot 
Staff recommends accepting the low, responsible base bid from SELS USA, LLC and authorizing 

 the Executive Director to enter into a purchase for $29,942.00. 
 

5. Approval for Moving Forward with BS&A Cloud Software 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the Executive Director to accept the quote for services and 
pay the first installment in the amount of $9,075.00 to secure the Park District’s place in the 
implementation schedule with the total out of pocket not to exceed $57,625.00 for upgrade, 
implementation, and training. 

 

6. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Champaign County Clerk for Election Boxes  
Staff recommends approval of a two-year extension of the IGA with the County Clerk’s office for its 
ballot boxes in Centennial and Douglass Parks through June of 2025.  
 

7. Approval of a Resolution on Forming the Local Government Efficiency Committee 
Staff recommends approval of a resolution on forming the Local Government Efficiency Committee. 

 

8. Approval to Accept Proposal for 2023-2025 Auditing Services with an option to extend for an 
additional three-year term 
Staff recommends the Board accept the quote for auditing services from Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
and authorize the Executive Director to enter into the initial contract term of three (3) years (or 
FYE23-25) in the amount of $123,100.00, with the option to extend for an additional three (3) years 
(or FYE26-28) in the amount of $138,600.00. 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
Special Board Meeting  
May 24, 2023  
Page 2  
 
F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Park and Recreational Facility Construction (PARC) Grant Application for Prairie Farm Shelter 
 

2. Board Meeting Format 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 
H. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board will convene into Executive Session under the Illinois Open Meetings Act, specifically 5 
ILCS Par. 120/2(c)(2) collective negotiating matters involving the public body. 

 
I. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING 
 
J. ADJOURN 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 

FROM:         Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 

DATE: May 16, 2023 

SUBJECT: Supplemental Information for OpenGov Presentation

Background 
Staff currently use software to prepare the budget book, that is not very intuitive or user friendly. 
The process was more evident this past year as new staff were trained in the process of updating 
the documents. While staff did complete the budget in April, the earliest time ever, it became clear 
that a new process was necessary. Since early Spring, staff have reviewed multiple budgeting 
software systems that integrate directly with BS&A. One of the systems set itself apart from other 
vendors due to its ability to directly link strategic plan goals as part of the budget input process. The 
system also allows the data to sync with BS&A in real-time, to allow for timelier budget-to-actual 
reporting in the same format as the budget book is prepared. The software is cloud-based to allow 
for unlimited users. 

Prior Board Action 
None. 

Budget Impact 
The cost of the software implementation was included in the FYE2024 approved budget. 

Discussion 
Staff will recommend Board approval of an agreement with OpenGov 6/10/23 Regular Board 
meeting and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreement pending Legal review. 

Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Sarah Sandquist, CPRE 
Director of Finance Executive Director 























1 

 

4857-2264-9700, v. 1 

 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, ILLINOIS 

AND THE 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

(Concerning the Use of the Southeast Corner of  

First Street and Washington Street) 

 

 THIS AMENDMENT to Agreement (hereinafter referred to as, “Amendment”) is made and 

entered into this ___ day of ________, 2023, by and between the Champaign Park District, a municipal 

corporation (“Park District”), and the City of Champaign, Illinois, a municipal corporation (“City”).  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution and the Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq., provide for and enable the Park District and City to enter into 

cooperative agreements between themselves; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Park District have entered into agreements relative to the Boneyard 

Creek since 1994; 

 

 WHEREAS, in 1991 the City purchased from the Park District the property known as Skelton 

Park, which is located at the southeast corner of First Street and Washington Street in Champaign, 

Illinois; 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 15, 1991, the City granted a License (“1991 License”), which authorized the 

Park District to use Skelton Park for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City retained ownership of Skelton Park because it anticipated that the subject 

property would be needed for future stormwater drainage and detention purposes;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is entering into Phase B of the Boneyard North Branch Project; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Park District have a mutual interest in making improvements to Skelton 

Park for public purposes; 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Park District have entered into a separate and distinct 

Intergovernmental Agreement for certain improvements to Skelton Park which will be managed by the 

Park District and is authorized under the existing 1991 License;  

 

 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to reimburse the Park District for project costs related to 

construction of the Boneyard Creek multi-purpose trail, sidewalk and improvements, and a bioswale; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in conjunction with the Skelton Park Project (“Project”) the City and Park District 

have determined that the 1991 License should be amended in part to address the terms and conditions of 

such 1991 License to govern the continuation of the relationship between the City and Park District 

pursuant thereto. 

   

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and Park District hereby amend the 

1991 License as set forth herein and agree in all other respects that the 1991 License shall remain in effect 

except where superseded hereby as follows: 

 



2 

 

4857-2264-9700, v. 1 

Section 1: Skelton Park Project.   Park District shall manage the improvements to be performed at 

Skelton Park which are authorized under the 1991 License and the separate Intergovernmental 

Agreement.  The Skelton Park Project (“Project”) consists of several components as depicted in the Site 

Plan attached as Exhibit A.  Construction of the Project shall be undertaken pursuant to a separate 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) between the City and Park District, as well as agreements between 

the Park District and Visit Champaign County, a not-for-profit corporation (“VCC”), and third-party 

contractors.   Pursuant to this Amendment, and during the term of the 1991 License, the Park District, at 

its sole expense shall continue to maintain and supervise Skelton Park with the same degree of quality 

care as other real estate the Park District uses for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping, the 

multi-use trail, and sidewalks internal to the park location,  (specifically excluding any perimeter 

sidewalks, owned, controlled, or maintained by the City.  The Park District shall have no construction, 

operational or maintenance responsibility for any bioswale or property within the banks of the Boneyard 

Creek, or the flow of such creek.  The construction of the bioswale by the Park District is governed by  an 

Intergovernmental Agreement.  Upon completion of construction, the Park District shall have no 

operational or maintenance responsibility for any bioswale at Skelton Park.  Any responsibilities 

regarding the Project in Skelton Park not otherwise set forth herein and that do not constitute maintenance 

and supervision of the Licensed Area for park purposes, are and shall remain the responsibilities of the 

City. 

  

Section 2:  Term.  Pursuant to Section 6 of the 1991 License, that Agreement and this 

Amendment shall continue according to the terms thereof, provided that, because of the improvements 

undertaken, the Park District’s obligation to remove improvements shall be limited to signage, if any, and 

any structures or improvements owned by the Park District, upon request of the City.     

 

 Section 3:  Indemnification.    The duplicate Section 6 starting on page 4 of the License 

Agreement regarding indemnification shall be replaced and amended by the following terms:  

Notwithstanding any other term of this Agreement and regardless of any insurance obtained by the Park 

District for the benefit of the City, the Park District hereby waives, releases, and shall protect and defend 

the City and acknowledges that the City shall not be liable for, and the Park District shall indemnify and 

hold the City (including all of its agents, officers and employees) harmless from any and all loss, 

liabilities, damages, suits, actions, claims, demands, expenses, attorney’s fees, and costs of every kind and 

nature incurred by or asserted or imposed against the City or its agents, officers and employees during or 

after the completion of the Project and through the use of the Licensed Premises arising out of or in 

connection with any use, non-use, possession, occupation, existence, condition, operation, design, 

construction, maintenance, or management of or on or in connection with the Park District’s Licensed 

Premises, with the exception of the bioswale, banks of the Boneyard Creek, or flow of such creek,  owned 

and maintained portion of improvements by reason of any accident, injury including death, or damage to 

any person or property however caused, other than by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

City or its officers, employees or agents.    

 

Notwithstanding any other term of this Agreement and regardless of any insurance obtained 

by the City for the benefit of the Park District, the City hereby waives, releases, and shall protect and 

defend the Park District and acknowledges that the Park District shall not be liable for, and the City 

shall indemnify and hold the Park District (including all of its commissioners, officers, employees, 

agents, representatives, and volunteers) harmless from any and all loss, liabilities, damages, suits, 

actions, claims, demands, expenses, attorney’s fees, and costs of every kind and nature incurred by or 

asserted or imposed against the Park District or its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, and volunteers during or after the completion of the Project arising out of or in 

connection with any use, non-use, possession, occupation, existence, condition, operation, design, 

construction, maintenance, or management of or on or in connection with the bioswale, banks of the 

Boneyard Creek, or flow of such creek, or the City-owned and maintained perimeter sidewalks, City 

owned and maintained portion of improvements by reason of any accident, injury including death, or 

damage to any person or property however caused, other than by the sole negligence or willful 

Formatted: Font: Bold



3 

 

4857-2264-9700, v. 1 

misconduct of the Park District or its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and 

volunteers. 

 

 Section 8: Stormwater Utility Fees.  In recognition of the purpose of this Agreement, in no 

event shall the Park District ever be obligated for or assessed any stormwater utility fee or other 

similar fee or charge regarding the area and park which are the subject of this Agreement.  

 

 Section 9: Notice.  Any notices or other communication required or permitted under 

this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered requiring a signed 

receipt, or (b) sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, or (c) sent by overnight delivery to the address of the respective Party set forth 

herein utilizing a reputable courier.  Such notice or communication shall be deemed given (i) 

if sent by personal delivery when delivered in person, (ii) if sent by certified or registered 

United States mail, four (4) days following deposit in the United States mail, or (iii) if sent by 

overnight delivery utilizing a reputable courier two (2) days following placement with such 

courier. Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner detailed in 

this Section. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, any notice pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be sent to the following: 

 Champaign Park District   City of Champaign 

 Executive Director     City Manager 

 706 Kenwood Rd.    102 N. Neil St. 

 Champaign, IL 61821    Champaign, IL 61820  

 

       With a copy to  

Planning & Development Director 

Same address as above 

 

With a copy to 

legaldepartment@champaignil.gov 
 

Section 10.  Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned or delegated by either Party to 

any subsidiary, successor, partner, employee, agent or affiliate without the prior written consent of the 

other Party which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 Section 11.  Applicable Law and Venue.  The Parties shall comply with all applicable federal, 

state and local statutes, rules, regulations, and ordinances with regard to the performance of carrying out 

of the terms of this Agreement.  In the event of any claim or lawsuit regarding this Agreement, 

Champaign County, Illinois, shall be the appropriate venue for such claim or suit. 

Section 12.  Severability.    In the event one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall be determined by court of law having appropriate jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable in any respect, such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and the 

validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement or any other application 

thereof shall not be affected or impaired thereby, and shall remain in effect. 

 Section 13.  Waiver.  Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants 

or conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condition, nor 

shall a failure to insist upon strict compliance with any right or power at any one time or times be deemed 

a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition or right or power at any other time or 

times. 



4 

 

4857-2264-9700, v. 1 

 Section 14.  Counterparts.  This Agreement shall be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed to be an original. 

Section 15.  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  The 1991 License, this Amendment and any 

terms or specifications attached hereto or otherwise referred to herein constitute the entire agreement 

between the Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior or contemporaneous 

agreements and understandings either oral or written of the Parties in connection herewith.  No 

modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing, signed by both Parties and 

dated after the date hereof. 

 IN WITNESS of this Agreement, the Parties hereto set their hands and seals and executed this 

Agreement effective as of the day and year above written.  

 

CITY OF CHAMPAIGN   CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

 

 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 

City Manager     President 

 

 

ATTEST:     ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 

City Clerk     Secretary 

 

 

(SEAL)      (SEAL) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR CITY:            APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR PARK DISTRICT 

 

 

_____________________________                    ______________________________ 

City Attorney                                                        Its Attorney 

 

  

 



  
4888-5729-7764, v. 1 

1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

(Boneyard North Branch - Skelton Park - Champaign Park District) 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on the date it is fully 
executed, by and between the CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, ILLINOIS, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, a municipal corporation (“Park District”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution and the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq., provide for and enable the parties to enter into cooperative 
agreements among themselves. 

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have entered into agreements relative to the 
Boneyard Creek since 1994. 

WHEREAS, in 1991, the City purchased from the Park District the property known as Skelton 
Park, which is located at the southeast corner of First Street and Washington Street in Champaign, 
Illinois. 

WHEREAS, on July 15, 1991, the City granted a license (“1991 License”), which authorized 
the Park District to use Skelton Park for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping. 

WHEREAS, the City retained ownership of Skelton Park because it anticipated the subject 
property would be needed for future stormwater drainage and detention purposes. 

WHEREAS, the City is entering into Phases B and C of the Boneyard North Branch Project. 

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have a mutual interest in making improvements to 
Skelton Park for public purposes. 

WHEREAS, the certain improvements as described herein at Skelton Park will be managed 
by the Park District and is are authorized under the existing License. 

WHEREAS, the City agrees to reimburse the Park District for costs related to construction of 
a Boneyard Creek multi-purpose trail, sidewalk improvements, and a bioswale.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Skelton Park Project.   The Park District shall manage the improvements to be performed at 
Skelton Park, which are authorized under the License and this Agreement.  The Skelton Park Project 
(“Project”) is consists of several components as depicted in the Site Plan attached as Exhibit A.  The 
City Engineer shall monitor the progress of the work in compliance with the Champaign Municipal 
Code and usual and customary practices. 

 



  
4888-5729-7764, v. 1 

2 

2. City Reimbursement.      

A.  The Park District shall be solely responsible for making all payments to contractors for the 
work performed on the Project, subject to a right of reimbursement from the City for certain 
costs as provided below and advance payment from the Visit Champaign County, Illinois not-
for-profit corporation of not less than $305,000.00.   

B.  The City shall reimburse the Park District for the City’s share of the actual cost of construction, 
which is estimated at $155,000, and represents the an estimated of costs for construction of a 
Boneyard Creek multi-purpose trail, sidewalk improvements, lighting, and a bioswale at 
Skelton Park.  The overall cost estimate for the Project cost of construction is $460,000. The 
City shall pay the Park District within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a request for 
reimbursement for approved costs. In the event that the actual costs exceed $155,000, then 
depending on the amount over $155,000, the additional costs may be authorized 
administratively through a change order pursuant to the City’s purchasing ordinance or 
presented to the City Council for subsequent Council approval.  

C.  In the event that bids for the Project are 30% or more higher than the $460,000 overall 
estimated cost, then this Agreement may be terminated by the City for any such higher amount 
over $155,000.  As the entity overseeing the Project and entering into contracts for such 
Project, the Park District shall have the right to accept or reject any and all bids pursuant to 
its procedures and bidding requirements as it shall solely determine.  In advance of any 
termination, the City and the Park District shall meet and confer in good faith regarding the 
Project and this Agreement, and any amendments, modifications, or adjustments thereto.  

3. Term.  This Agreement shall terminate upon completion of the Project improvements and 
payment of the reimbursement described herein or any amendments hereto.  Any matters related to 
the terms of the 1991 License and any amendments thereto shall be addressed by the City and Park 
District. , except those covenants which survive termination.  

4.  Compliance with Law.  The parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and permit requirements pertaining to the completion of the 
Project.   

5. Maintenance.  The financial commitment contained herein shall not be deemed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or other formal or informal relationship between the parties to this 
Agreement other than as set forth herein.  No ownership interest will transfer upon completion of this 
Project.  Pursuant to the terms of the 1991 License and any amendments thereto, and surviving 
termination of this Agreement, the Park District, at its sole expense, shall continue to maintain and 
supervise Skelton Park with the same degree of quality care as the other real estate the Park District 
uses for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping, the multi-use trail, and sidewalks.  
However, the Park District shall continue to have no maintenance responsibility for the bioswale, 
property within the banks of the Boneyard Creek, or the flow of the Boneyard Creek.   

6. Liability.  Each party shall be solely responsible and liable for any and all claims, at law or 
equity, arising out of or resulting from any activities performed in connection with their specific 
obligations under this Agreement, except for claims solely attributable to the negligence of the other 
party or that other party’s officials, employees, or agents.  Nothing herein shall impact the protections 



  
4888-5729-7764, v. 1 

3 

afforded the parties under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 
745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq.  

7. Severability, Recordation.  Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or 
unenforceable shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded by the 
City in the land records of Champaign County, Illinois.  

8. Merger and Recordation.  Except as otherwise provided in the 1991 License and any 
amendments thereto, Tthis Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions relating to the 
agreement of the parties and no oral representations, covenants, or agreements exist between the 
parties other than those stated herein. The Park District shall record this Agreement to run with the 
land.  

9. Indemnification.   This section survives termination. The Park District shall indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the City and any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
representatives from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, causes of actions, demands, attorney 
fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments of whatsoever kind and character, including without 
limitation, all possible costs of responding to demands, in whatever form that may take, with respect 
to any claim made against the City that arises solely from an act, failure or omission on the part of 
the Park District, or any of its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and 
volunteers in carrying out the terms of this Agreement.   

The City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Park District and its commissioners, officers, 
employees, agents, and representatives from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, causes of 
actions, demands, attorney fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments of whatsoever kind and 
character, including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to demands, in whatever form 
that may take, with respect to any claim made against the Park District that arises from an act, failure 
or omission on the part of the City or its officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives in 
carrying out of the terms of this Agreement. 

10.  Notice.  Any notices or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered requiring a signed receipt, or (b) sent by 
certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (c) sent by 
overnight delivery to the address of the respective Party set forth herein utilizing a reputable courier.  
Such notice or communication shall be deemed given (i) if sent by personal delivery when delivered 
in person, (ii) if sent by certified or registered United States mail, four (4) days following deposit in 
the United States mail, or (iii) if sent by overnight delivery utilizing a reputable courier two (2) days 
following placement with such courier. Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice 
in the manner detailed in this Section. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, any notice pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be sent by first class US Mail to the following: 

 Champaign Park District   City of Champaign 
 Director     City Manager 
 706 Kenwood Rd.    102 N. Neil St. 
 Champaign, IL 61821    Champaign, IL 61820  
 
       With a copy to  



  
4888-5729-7764, v. 1 

4 

Planning & Development Director 
Same address as above 
 
With a copy to 
legaldepartment@champaignil.gov 
 

11. Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original.  Facsimile, pdf, or other digital signature (i.e. DocuSign) shall be 
deemed to have the same effect as an original ink. 

 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Park District have signed this Agreement to the above 
terms on the date it is fully executed as indicated below. 

 

CITY OF CHAMPAIGN  CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

         

By:                                                             By:                         

 City Manager   Executive Director   
   
Date:____________________________ Date:______________________________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

                                                                  _______________________________ 

Asst. City Attorney Counsel for Park District   

 

 

   

List of Exhibits 



  
4888-5729-7764, v. 1 

5 

 

A- Site Plan 



  
4859-9338-9412, v. 1 

1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

(Boneyard North Branch - Skelton Park - Champaign Park District) 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on the date it is fully 
executed, by and between the CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, ILLINOIS, a municipal corporation (“City”) 
and CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, a municipal corporation (“Park District”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution and the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq., provide for and enable the parties to enter into cooperative 
agreements among themselves. 

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have entered into agreements relative to the 
Boneyard Creek since 1994. 

WHEREAS, in 1991, the City purchased from the Park District the property known as Skelton 
Park, which is located at the southeast corner of First Street and Washington Street in Champaign, 
Illinois. 

WHEREAS, on July 15, 1991, the City granted a license (“1991 License”), which authorized 
the Park District to use Skelton Park for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping. 

WHEREAS, the City retained ownership of Skelton Park because it anticipated the subject 
property would be needed for future stormwater drainage and detention purposes. 

WHEREAS, the City is entering into Phase B of the Boneyard North Branch Project. 

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have a mutual interest in making improvements to 
Skelton Park for public purposes. 

WHEREAS, certain improvements as described herein at Skelton Park will be managed by 
the Park District and are authorized under the existing License. 

WHEREAS, the City agrees to reimburse the Park District for costs related to construction of 
a Boneyard Creek multi-purpose trail, sidewalk improvements, and a bioswale.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Skelton Park Project.   The Park District shall manage the improvements to be performed at 
Skelton Park, which are authorized under the License and this Agreement.  The Skelton Park Project 
(“Project”) consists of several components as depicted in the Site Plan attached as Exhibit A.  The 
City Engineer shall monitor the progress of the work in compliance with the Champaign Municipal 
Code and usual and customary practices. 

 



  
4859-9338-9412, v. 1 

2 

2. City Reimbursement.      

A.  The Park District shall be solely responsible for making all payments to contractors for the 
work performed on the Project, subject to a right of reimbursement from the City for certain 
costs as provided below and advance payment from the Visit Champaign County, Illinois not-
for-profit corporation of not less than $305,000.00.   

B.  The City shall reimburse the Park District for the City’s share of the actual cost of construction, 
which is estimated at $155,000, and represents an estimate of costs for construction of a 
Boneyard Creek multi-purpose trail, sidewalk improvements, lighting, and a bioswale at 
Skelton Park.  The overall cost estimate for the Project cost of construction is $460,000. The 
City shall pay the Park District within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a request for 
reimbursement for approved costs. In the event that the actual costs exceed $155,000, then 
depending on the amount over $155,000, the additional costs may be authorized 
administratively through a change order pursuant to the City’s purchasing ordinance or 
presented to the City Council for subsequent Council approval.  

C.  In the event that bids for the Project are 30% or more higher than the $460,000 overall 
estimated cost, then this Agreement may be terminated by the City for any such higher amount 
over $155,000.  As the entity overseeing the Project and entering into contracts for such 
Project, the Park District shall have the right to accept or reject any and all bids pursuant to 
its procedures and bidding requirements as it shall solely determine.  In advance of any 
termination, the City and the Park District shall meet and confer in good faith regarding the 
Project and this Agreement, and any amendments, modifications, or adjustments thereto.  

3. Term.  This Agreement shall terminate upon completion of the Project improvements and 
payment of the reimbursement described herein or any amendments hereto.  Any matters related to 
the terms of the 1991 License and any amendments thereto shall be addressed by the City and Park 
District.   

4.  Compliance with Law.  The parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and permit requirements pertaining to the completion of the 
Project.   

5. Maintenance.  The financial commitment contained herein shall not be deemed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or other formal or informal relationship between the parties to this 
Agreement other than as set forth herein.  No ownership interest will transfer upon completion of this 
Project.  Pursuant to the terms of the 1991 License and any amendments thereto, the Park District, at 
its sole expense, shall continue to maintain and supervise Skelton Park with the same degree of quality 
care as other real estate the Park District uses for park purposes, including ornamental landscaping, 
the multi-use trail, and sidewalks.  However, the Park District shall continue to have no maintenance 
responsibility for the bioswale, property within the banks of the Boneyard Creek, or the flow of the 
Boneyard Creek.   

6. Liability.  Each party shall be solely responsible and liable for any and all claims, at law or 
equity, arising out of or resulting from any activities performed in connection with their specific 
obligations under this Agreement, except for claims solely attributable to the negligence of the other 
party or that other party’s officials, employees, or agents.  Nothing herein shall impact the protections 



  
4859-9338-9412, v. 1 

3 

afforded the parties under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 
745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq.  

7. Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable shall be 
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement.  

8. Merger.  Except as otherwise provided in the 1991 License and any amendments thereto, this 
Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions relating to the agreement of the parties and no 
oral representations, covenants, or agreements exist between the parties other than those stated herein.  

9. Indemnification.   The Park District shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and 
any of its officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives from and against any and all 
liability, loss, costs, causes of actions, demands, attorney fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments 
of whatsoever kind and character, including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to 
demands, in whatever form that may take, with respect to any claim made against the City that arises 
solely from an act, failure or omission on the part of the Park District, or any of its commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers in carrying out the terms of this 
Agreement.   

The City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Park District and its commissioners, officers, 
employees, agents, and representatives from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, causes of 
actions, demands, attorney fees, expenses, claims, suits and judgments of whatsoever kind and 
character, including without limitation, all possible costs of responding to demands, in whatever form 
that may take, with respect to any claim made against the Park District that arises from an act, failure 
or omission on the part of the City or its officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives in 
carrying out of the terms of this Agreement. 

10.  Notice.  Any notices or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered requiring a signed receipt, or (b) sent by 
certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (c) sent by 
overnight delivery to the address of the respective Party set forth herein utilizing a reputable courier.  
Such notice or communication shall be deemed given (i) if sent by personal delivery when delivered 
in person, (ii) if sent by certified or registered United States mail, four (4) days following deposit in 
the United States mail, or (iii) if sent by overnight delivery utilizing a reputable courier two (2) days 
following placement with such courier. Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice 
in the manner detailed in this Section. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, any notice pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be sent to the following: 

 Champaign Park District   City of Champaign 
 Director     City Manager 
 706 Kenwood Rd.    102 N. Neil St. 
 Champaign, IL 61821    Champaign, IL 61820  
 
       With a copy to  

Planning & Development Director 
Same address as above 
 



  
4859-9338-9412, v. 1 

4 

With a copy to 
legaldepartment@champaignil.gov 
 

11. Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original.  Facsimile, pdf, or other digital signature (i.e. DocuSign) shall be 
deemed to have the same effect as an original ink. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Park District have signed this Agreement to the above 
terms on the date it is fully executed as indicated below. 

 

CITY OF CHAMPAIGN  CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

         

By:                                                             By:                         

 City Manager   Executive Director   
   
Date:____________________________ Date:______________________________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

                                                                  _______________________________ 

Asst. City Attorney Counsel for Park District   

 

 

  



  
4859-9338-9412, v. 1 

5 

   

List of Exhibits 

 

A- Site Plan 



.....---
-

+--
OEMOLITION Of EXIST NG SIDEWALK 
CONN: CTIONS BeTWEliN 
RIGHT-O�•WAY SIDl:WAU< AND

 
MONUM

ENl ARliA (P AID 8Y CITY J 

Ri:CCWIIF1ciutA
Tic5N r.til 

SICEWALK
 Al PLAZA

 
MONU

MENT �ELOCA
T ON . ANO 

JEWI\CCESSIBLE
 COhNE

CTIONI 
\

 
'Cl.

 
;�?��

����
�

� NE
 

>
� 

tPAl08Y0TYl 

...en ... lrT-WIO
i MI..A,11-USi TRAJL l�OUGH 

THf: PARK �
 FUTURI: CONNl:CTION 

AND l;XTl;NS
!ON AS PART OF TH� 

BCJiE:YARD CREEK MPR
CM:

MENTS 
(PAID BY CtlYJ. 

SI
TE

 �
 YO

UT
 Pl.

AN
" 

�� 

', 
.ll!!Ill.

 
1 \.H..

l:SS NOlEO 1-E:REI N ALL OTtER COSTS ARE: 
PAID BY THE PARt<

 01SffllCT 
'2 BAS

ED ON OVl:
RAL

LPR<>.l::
CT COSTS. TtE CITY 

;W,U, 1\1.S()
 �HO A PR(RA

TS) AlilOUNl fll'll,,
J OF 

THi: �
OWINGGEHtRAl.

 CONS
TRUCllOHCOSTS: 

• CONSTR\JCTION FENCINO 
• CONSTRUCllON STAKl"'1Gtl.J\YOUT 
, MAlERIAL lESTINO 
• EROSION CONlRQ. MEA

�
E:S 

• M081Lt.lATION 

IJ=7f
 I / :;.;>

)
 

l���
:��-�

�
::O�':'�:�

�
oc�

 ,':'
POS

ED
 

ADDITIONA
L l;AIBA

NKMENT FOR BERM PAtD BY PARK
 DfSTRJCl' 

MOUCT
111 

P19$Il'1G eceeex
&fOCPf'tl 

,-i&JCN..-1 
I 

U
N

LES
S

N
O

TEO
O

TH
ER'H1

SE:.
 S

TA
 TUE A

N
O

 ALL
 S

uRROuN
DI

N
G

 
PLAZA

 IAIPRO
\IEM

EN
TS

A
RE

 P
AID

 B
'f P

AR
K

 D
ISTR

IC
T 

il�
��

tJ��s�
��

 NV
 

�Cl:SSAR
Y TO COl'iS

lRUCl SWAl..t:
 �

 
FUT\.AI: CCJ'll'4

1:CTION T OCRAINA� 
IMPROVEM

ENlSALONO FIRST S.TRE:El 
A!1 PA.RT OF 1H: BON

E:YARO CREEK 
,,..Ji

f 1 �
 n,

•H l �
O��

T( P Ao08 �
�' 

'-.-

I 
Farn

sw
orth

 
G

RO
U

P
 

2JEIWC'flllAClll'
M•UI 

c-
rlllGtl.

 w•m ,aa-1 
Plfl)UJG/....

, __ 
·-··-

l,lw:1'1
1 .....

 ,..
 .. _

 ...
 11'.o

a.6
 

•Mt�
 

--
-

-
1

-
•

•i-
-

· ..
 -

� 
,

_
,c

,
1•

111
•-

�-
NOT

�
�

�
 

�
P

d
llnlntt

 

llke
hon

Parl<
 

�-·· 
a-..

" .. 

O.
TE

 

[HO
tE

D
 

rPMNH
 

.......... 
Fl

a
D

EIOCJ(
NO

 ·-
""

 
""

 
-

C
ITY

 FU
N

D
E

D
 

SK
ELT

O
N

 P
A

R
K

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

TS 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

 

PR<l,Et;
TN)

 
o:n

1G1')
DCI

 

Exhibit A 

Site Plan



1 
4873-8278-2783, v. 2 

AMENDMENT TO 

AGREEMENT FOR DISPLAY OF SCULPTURE AND REIMBURSEMENT 

 
 This is an Amendment to the Agreement for Display of a Sculpture and Reimbursement for costs 
and expenses incurred and related to such display by and between the CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, 
a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, located at 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, IL  61821 
(hereinafter referred to as, “Park District”) and VISIT CHAMPAIGN COUNTY FOUNDATION, an 
Illinois not for profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as, “VCC”), located at 17 E. Taylor Street, 
Champaign, IL  61820, and individually or collectively referred to as “Party” or “Parties”, as the case may 
be, pursuant to, in accordance with, and supplemental to the Agreement effective the date of February 8, 
2023, with this Amendment being effective ____________, ___, 2023. 

WITNESSETH: 

Whereas, Park District is a licensee of an area known as Skelton Park in the City of Champaign, 
Illinois;  

Whereas, the licensor and owner of Skelton Park is the City of Champaign, an Illinois municipal 
corporation (hereinafter referred to as, “City”);  

Whereas, the Park District and City entered into a license agreement regarding Skelton Park on or 
about July 15, 1991 and such license remains in effect as of this date;  

Whereas, VCC, City, and Park District are interested in undertaking various improvements to 
Skelton Park to provide dedicated space for and honor African American musicians who have performed 
or resided in or near Champaign County, Illinois, as well as incorporate structural improvements to the 
park for the purposes of stormwater management; and 

Whereas, VCC and citizens have arranged for the creation of a Preston Jackson sculpture to be 
erected in Skelton Park, together with further enhancements by the City and Park District in order to  
beautify the park and recognize the contributions of those African American citizens so honored.  

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Skelton Park Project Implementation.   The Park District has contracted with Farnsworth 
Group, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as, “FG”) for the development of construction documents related to 
the revitalization and transformation of Skelton Park, including the installation of a multi-use trail, 
sidewalk, sculpture and other materials and amenities.  FG has completed development of such 
construction documents, and the Park District is undertaking an Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) 
and Amendment to the License Agreement with the City in order to complete those Skelton Park Project 
(“Project”) elements.     

2. VCC Deposit.    Park District has entered into an agreement with FG to develop plans and 
documents for Skelton Park pursuant to the original Agreement of February 8, 2023.  FG has completed 
development of those plans and documents.  In order for the Project to proceed with the Park District to 
manage, direct, and administer oversight thereof, VCC shall deposit with the Park District, the amount of 
Three Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($305,000.00).  Such amount represents funds from VCC, the 
Champaign Rotary Club, and Champaign County to be utilized in the construction of the Project.  The 
City of Champaign is to also contribute an amount not less than One Hundred Fifty-five Thousand 
Dollars ($155,000.00) for the total estimated Project cost of Four Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars 
($460,000.00).   VCC shall be responsible for any Project cost amounts in excess of Four Hundred Sixty 
Thousand Dollars ($460,000.00). 



2 
4873-8278-2783, v. 2 

3. Scope of Construction.  The scope of construction shall be governed by the terms of agreement 
between the Park District and FG as well as the Park District and the contractor to whom the contract is 
awarded.  VCC may offer suggestions to the Park District and City regarding aesthetic elements of the 
Project.  In the event that bids for construction of the Project exceed the cost estimate, and before the Park 
District considers rejecting such bid(s), it shall grant VCC the opportunity to propose changes to the 
Project elements or offer supplemental funding for the Project’s completion.  VCC shall also have the 
opportunity to participate in the design of the Project.  

4. Maintenance.  The financial commitment contained herein shall not be deemed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or other formal or informal relationship between the Parties to this Agreement.  
There shall be no transfer of any ownership interest upon completion of the project.  The Park District’s 
maintenance obligations at Skelton Park are and shall remain otherwise addressed pursuant to the terms of 
its 1991 License with the City of Champaign and any amendments thereto.  At its sole expense, The Park 
District shall continue to maintain and supervise Skelton Park with the same degree of quality care as 
other real estate the Park District uses for park purposes, including, ornamental landscaping, the multi-use 
trail, sidewalks within the internal dimensions of the park, and recreational features such as, installed 
musical instruments.  VCC Shall be responsible for maintaining the African-American Heritage Trail 
signage, sculpture, and Hall of Fame Trail. 

5. Notices.  Any notices regarding this Agreement given by either Party shall be in writing and 
deemed to have been given, delivered or made, as the case may be; (i) when personally hand delivered, or 
(ii) five (5) business days after having been deposited in the U.S. Mail, certified or registered, return 
receipt requested, with sufficient postage affixed and prepaid, including a copy sent by regular U.S. mail, 
or (iii) one (1) business day after having been deposited with an expedited overnight courier service (such 
as but not limited to: U.S. Express Mail, Federal Express, or United Parcel Service (UPS)), addressed to 
the party to whom notice is intended to be given at the address set forth below:  

If to Park District:   
Executive Director  
Champaign Park District 
706 Kenwood Road 
Champaign, IL 61820  

If to VCC:  
President  
Visit Champaign County Foundation 
17 E. Taylor Street  
Champaign, IL 61820  

 
Any Party may change the address to which its notices are to be sent by giving the other Party written 
notice of any changes in the manner provided herein, but notice of change of address is effective only 
upon actual receipt. 

6. Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois.  

7. Venue.  In the event of any claim or lawsuit regarding this Agreement, Champaign County, 
Illinois, shall be the appropriate venue for such claim or suit. 

8. Counterparts and Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which together constitute the Agreement, and 
may be executed in one or more counterpart signature pages (such as, facsimile or electronic [including 
without limitation, “pdf”, “tif”, “jpg”, DocuSign or AdobeSign] or other counterpart signature pages), 
each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

9. Construction of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one 
party than against another merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by one of the 



 
 

  
4873-8278-2783, v. 2 
 

3 

Parties; it being acknowledged that both VCC and Park District have substantially and materially 
contributed to its preparation.  

10. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is contrary to, prohibited by, or deemed invalid 
by applicable laws, regulations or court decisions of any jurisdiction in which it is sought to be enforced, 
then such provision shall be deemed inapplicable and omitted, but such omissions shall not invalidate the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement which shall remain in effect.  
 
11. Entirety of Agreement.  This Amendment together with the Agreement effective February 8, 
2023 embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties hereto, and, except as 
otherwise described herein, there are no other agreements and understandings, oral or written, with 
reference to the subject matter hereof that are not merged herein and superseded hereby.  Any alteration, 
change, or modification of the terms of this Agreement shall not be valid unless made in writing and 
executed by both Parties hereto.  

12. Time of the Essence.  The Parties shall promptly execute all documents reasonably required herein 
and undertake such actions to effectuate the intent and purpose of this Agreement.  
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Park District and VCC have executed this Agreement effective as of the 
date set forth above.  

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois  Visit Champaign County Foundation, an  
municipal corporation     Illinois not for profit corporation 
 
 
By: ________________________________   By: _____________________________ 
      Craig W. Hays, President  Jayne DeLuce, President 
 
  
Attest       Attest 
 
By: _________________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 Jarrod Scheunemann, Board Secretary          Brooke Gordon, Secretary 
 
   

 

 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: May 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Porter Park Parking Lot Solar Lighting  
 
Background 
Porter Park currently has no lighting and no electrical infrastructure to, or within, the parking lot.  
Solar power is a very good option for the area due to the openness of the terrain.  Each light, 
battery pack and solar panel is fully self-contained on each individual pole.  
Staff  chose to include motion sensors and a wildlife friendly light spectrum in order to ensure 
the best protection of wildlife and increase the longevity of battery and fixture life span.  The 
lights are International Dark Sky compliant, reducing unnecessary light spill-over into the 
neighborhood or skyward. 
 
The bid includes poles, light heads, solar panels, battery packs, all necessary hardware, and a 
one-day, on-site training for installation by a company representative.  There are a total of eight 
poles that begin at the Rising Road entrance, follow the access road down and looping back 
into the parking lot.  The poles and lights will be installed by Operations staff, similar to other 
lighting projects.  All components have a seven-year warranty. 
 
An invitation to bid was published in The News-Gazette and bids were opened and read aloud 
on Thurs. May 11, 2023. The results are as follows: 
 

 
Prior Board Action 
The Park Board has approved this expenditure for FY22-23 as part of the Capital Improvement 
Plan.  
 
Budget Impact 
$33,000.00 has been budgeted in the 2022/2023 Capital Budget year for this project. A portion 
of the remaining $3,058.00 will be used to pour concrete bases. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends accepting the low, responsible base bid from SELS USA, LLC and 
authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a purchase for $29,942.00. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
Daniel J. Olson Sarah Sandquist  
Director of Operations Executive Director 

BIDDER BASE BID 

SELS USA, LLC. $29,942.00 

Goldwings Supply Service, Inc. $60,851.00 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: May 16, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Approval to Move Forward with BS&A Cloud Software 
 
Background 
The Park District has contracted with BS&A Software (accounting software) since October 2015. 
Since that time, staff have replaced the network data server twice, and will need to upgrade again in 
another year. Since then, BS&A has developed a cloud version with the data being hosted through 
Microsoft Azure platform. With the cloud version, staff will not need to perform updates to the 
software, purchase additional servers, and the software does not need to be installed on each 
individual computer. Staff will be able to access the software from the website with internet access 
and login criteria. Due to the demand for the service, there is currently a twelve (12) month wait list. 
By proceeding with the proposed quote and an initial payment of $9,075 the Park District will be 
placed on the waiting list for an installation sometime in May/June 2024. 
 
The cost to upgrade to the cloud version, implementation, training, and the purchase of an 
additional accounts receivable module is $44,800. Currently all manual invoices submitted by the 
Park District are completed through a web-form from the internal staff-only webpage. This is used 
for billing outside customers for memorials (Foundation), reimbursements, and rentals not included 
in RecTrac module for pop-up events. There is an annual hosting fee of $2,800 for the Microsoft 
Azure; plus travel expenses for the onsite training up to $10,025. 
 
Ongoing future costs for the subscription-based service are $23,625/year with a two (2) year price 
lock. After that time, fees are subject to the Consumers Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-
U). The annual fee for the current BS&A version used by the Park District is $9,483, due each 
November 1. 
 
Prior Board Action 
November 12, 2014 Board approved the initial purchase of BS&A not to exceed $166,995. 
 
Budget Impact 
The initial deposit of $9,075 is included in the FYE2024 budget. The remaining costs will be 
included in the FYE2025 capital budget for the implementation costs, with annual recurring costs of 
$26,425 in subsequent operating budget years. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the Executive Director to accept the quote for services and 
pay the first installment in the amount of $9,075 to secure our place in the implementation schedule 
with the total out of pocket not to exceed $57,625 for upgrade, implementation and training. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Sarah Sandquist, CPRE 
Director of Finance Executive Director  



 

BS&A Software  
14965 Abbey Lane Bath MI 48808  
(855) BSA-SOFT / fax (517) 641-8960 
bsasoftware.com 

 

Proposal for: 

Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL 

April 27, 2023 

Quoted by: Kevin Schafer 

 

 

Software and Services for BS&A Cloud 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote our software and services. 
 

 At BS&A, we are focused on delivering unparalleled service, solutions, support, and customer satisfaction. You’ll 
see this in our literature, but it’s not just a marketing strategy... it’s a mindset deeply embedded in our DNA. Our 
goal is to provide such remarkable customer service that our customers feel compelled to remark about it. 

 

We are extremely proud of the many long-term customer relationships we have built. Our success is directly 

correlated with putting the customer first and consistently choosing to listen. Delivering unparalleled customer 

service is the foundation of our company. 
 

 

  



 

 Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL | April 27, 2023 
  

  Kevin Schafer, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | kschafer@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 2 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Cost Summary  

Software is licensed for use only by municipality identified on the cover page.  If used for additional entities or agencies, 

please contact BS&A for appropriate pricing. Prices listed are estimates based on information currently available. 

 

Upgrade - Cloud Modules 

 

Financial Management   

$4,500 General Ledger  

Accounts Payable  $3,825 

Cash Receipting  $3,825 

Fixed Assets  $3,825 

Purchase Order  $3,825 

Subtotal $19,800 

 

 

New Purchase - Cloud Modules 

 

Financial Management   

$3,825 Accounts Receivable   

Subtotal $3,825 

 

  

Data Conversions/Database Setup 

  

Database Setup:  

$1,650  Accounts Receivable (Setup of Billing Items, Penalties) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


 

 Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL | April 27, 2023 
  

  Kevin Schafer, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | kschafer@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 3 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Project Management and Implementation Planning 

 

Services include: 

 Analyzing customer processes to ensure all critical components are addressed. 

 Creating and managing the project schedule in accordance with the customer's existing processes and needs. 

 Planning and scheduling training around any planned process changes included in the project plan. 

 Modifying the project schedule as needed to accommodate any changes to the scope and requirements of the project that are 

discovered. 

 Providing a central contact between the customer’s project leaders, developers, trainers, IT staff, conversion staff, and other 
resources required throughout the transition period. 

 Installing the software and providing IT consultation for network, server, and workstation configuration and requirements. 

 Reviewing and addressing the specifications for needed customizations to meet customer needs (when applicable). 

 

 $7,425 

 

Implementation and Training 

 

 $1,100/day 

 Days quoted are estimates; you are billed for actual days used 

 

Services include: 

 

 Setting up users and user security rights for each application 

 Performing final process and procedure review 

 Configuring custom settings in each application to fit the needs of the customer 

 Setting up application integration and workflow methods 

 Onsite verification of converted data for balancing and auditing purposes 

 Training and Go-Live 

  

Software Setup Days: 1  $1,100 

Financial Management Modules Days: 10  $11,000 

 Total: 11 Subtotal $12,100 

 

 

 

  

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


 

 Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL | April 27, 2023 
  

  Kevin Schafer, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | kschafer@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 4 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Cost Totals 
Not including Annual Service Fees 

 

Cloud Upgrade  $19,800 

Cloud New Purchase  $3,825 

Database Setup  $1,650 

Project Management and Implementation Planning  $7,425 

Implementation and Training  $12,100 

Total Proposed  $44,800 

Travel Expenses  $10,025 

Hosting Fees  $2,800 

 

  

 

 

 
 

Payment Schedule 
 

1st Payment:  $9,075 to be invoiced upon execution of this agreement. 

2nd Payment:  $26,425 to be invoiced at activation of customer’s site. 

3rd Payment: $22,125 to be invoiced upon completion of training. 

  

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


 

 Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL | April 27, 2023 
  

  Kevin Schafer, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | kschafer@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 5 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Cloud Annual Service Fees  
 

Unlimited support is included in your Annual Service Fee. Service Fees are billed annually. After two (2) years, BS&A Software reserves the 

right to increase the Annual Service Fee by no more than the yearly Consumers Price Index for All Urban Consumers U.S. city average  

(CPI-U).” 
 

Financial Management  
$4,500 General Ledger  

Accounts Payable  $3,825 

Cash Receipting  $3,825 

Accounts Receivable  $3,825 

Fixed Assets  $3,825 

Purchase Order  $3,825 

Total Annual Service Fees $23,625 

 

 

Hosting Fees 

Fees relating to the hosting and storage of data through Microsoft Azure are to be billed annually, for all modules included above. 

 $2,800 

 

 

 

  

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


 

 Champaign Park District, Champaign County IL | April 27, 2023 
  

  Kevin Schafer, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | kschafer@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 6 of 6  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Additional Information 

Program Customization 

BS&A strives to provide a flexible solution that can be tailored to each municipality's needs. However, in some cases, custom work may 

be required. Typical examples include:  

• custom payment import/lock box import 

• custom OCR scan-line 

• custom journal export to an outside accounting system 

• custom reports 

If you require any custom work, please let us know so that we can better understand the scope of your request and include that in a 

separate proposal. 

 

Cash Receipting Hardware  
   Quantity  Cost 

 

Epson THM-6000V Series Receipt Printer* $925 x _____ = $_____________ 

 

APG Series 100Cash Drawer** $250 x _____ = $_____________  

 

Honeywell Hyperion 1300g Linear-Imaging Scanner $250 x _____ = $_____________ 

 

Credit Card Reader (if using Invoice Cloud) $75 x _____ = $_____________ 

 

This will add $____________________ to the Total Proposed. 

 

*IMPORTANT. The receipt printer must be plugged into the USB port on one workstation (not your server). This printer is not to be shared 

with other workstations. If more than one workstation will be used for receipting, please consider purchasing more than one receipt printer.  

 

Please provide the number of cash drawers that will be hooked up to the printer_____________ 

Note:  The availability, model numbers, and pricing for all third party hardware listed above is subject to availability from the 

manufacturers. In the event that the listed hardware is no longer available at the time of purchase, a comparable replacement will be 

available, at the then current cost. Returns require pre-approval, and all purchased equipment must be shipped back to BS&A in its 

original packaging. Returns are subject to a re-stocking fee of $50.00. 

BS&A Online 

Connection Requirements 
BS&A Cloud modules require a high-speed internet connection (cable modem or DSL). 

 

 

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

   

 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:  Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: May 18, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Ballot Boxes 
 
Background 
The County Clerk’s office staff reached out to the Champaign Park District (Park District) to request an 
extension to the IGA for the placement of ballot boxes for residents to drop off their ballots near their 
homes within Park District parks. The request included placing a ballot box at Centennial Park and 
Douglass Park, so residents could drive up or walk up to submit their ballots in a secure location. 
 
The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of two years with a possible extension of two 

additional year as long as both parties agree. 

 

Prior Board Action 
• September 23, 2020, Special Board Meeting, the Park Board approved the placement of the 

ballot boxes for a six-month term. 
• April 28, 2021, Special Board Meeting, the Park Board renewed the agreement for a one-year 

term. 
•  May 11, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, the Park Board renewed the agreement for a one-year 

term. 
 
Budget Impact 
The maintenance of the boxes will be the responsibility of the County Clerk’s office per the attached.  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Park Board approve a two-year extension of the IGA with the County Clerk’s 
office for ballot boxes in Centennial and Douglass Parks through June of 2025. 
 
 
Prepared by:         Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
Sarah Sandquist, CPRE      Jarrod Scheunemann 
Executive Director       Director of Admin Services 
 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

1 

ELECTION BALLOT BOX MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT 

(Champaign Park District – Champaign County) 

 THIS ELECTION BALLOT BOX MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT is being made 

and entered into on the first date that it is fully executed by all of the parties hereto, by and 

between the CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT (“Park District”) and CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 

(“County”). 

 WHEREAS, 10 ILCS 5/19-62B-20(e) authorizes election authorities to establish secure 

collection sites for the postage-free return of vote by mail ballots. 

 WHEREAS, the State Board of Elections has established additional guidelines for the 

security of such collection sites. 

 WHEREAS, the guidelines include, among other things, the establishment of 24-hour 

ballot collection sites.  

 WHEREAS, the County proposes to install a ballot box on a Park District Property or 

Right-of-Way. 

 WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et. seq. and Section 

8-11 of the Illinois Park District Code, authorize the Park District to enter into agreements with 

other governmental entities to permit the use of Park District property or rights-of-way for the 

construction, operation, and use of facilities thereon.  

 WHEREAS, the desired location for the ballot box is depicted on the attached map, 

which may be updated from time to time, if more locations are added by agreement of the 

parties.  

 WHEREAS, the Park District agrees to grant to the County a license to install a ballot 

box on a portion of Park District Property or Right-of-Way, subject to the conditions set forth 

herein and in compliance with applicable regulations and state and federal law. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants contained herein, the Park District and the County hereby agree as follows: 

 

Article 1.  Definitions.   

1.1 Agreement means this Election Ballot Box Master License Agreement made and entered 

into the date that it is fully executed by the parties.  

1.2 Ballot Box means the election ballot collection box, in-ground post, and concrete pad 

located and installed on a portion of Park District Property or Right-of-Way. 

1.3 Park District means the Park District of Champaign, Illinois.  

1.4 County means the Champaign County, a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois. 

1.5 Property or Right-of-Way means the portion of the street, sidewalk, parkway, or park 

owned and controlled by the Park District for public purposes.  

1.6 Site Map means the documents depicting the location of a Ballot Box. 

1.7 Site Plans means the design and construction plans to construct and install a Ballot Box. 

 

 

 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

2 

Article 2.  Responsibilities of the Park District. 

2.1 Grant of License. The Park District grants to the County a license to construct, install, 

maintain and use a Ballot Box located in a section of Property or Right-of-Way as 

depicted in the Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit A. The footprint of the Ballot Box 

shall be no greater than 24” x 30” x 36”. Additional locations to construct, install, 

maintain, and use a Ballot Box may be approved from time-to-time by execution of an 

addendum signed by the County Executive (or designee) and the Park District’s 

Executive Director (or designee). The rights granted to the County shall be subordinate to 

the Park District’s use of the Property or Right-of-Way.   

2.2  Effective Date; Term. This Agreement shall be effective upon the date it is fully 

executed. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) yeartwo (2) years 

from the effective date with a one (1) year option to and shall automaticallymay be 

renewed by agreement of the parties renew for subsequent one yeartwo (2) year terms, 

subject to the right of either party to terminate the agreement with thirty days’ (30) days’ 

written notice pursuant to the Termination provisions of Section 6.1 herein. This 

Agreement may be amended from time-to-time by further agreement of the parties. 

 

Article 3.  Responsibilities of the County. 

3.1 Ballot Box. The County agrees to install, maintain, and operate a Ballot Box as depicted 

in the Specifications attached hereto as Exhibit B and in accordance with 10 ILCS 5/19-

62B-20(e)€ as well as the associated guidelines published by the State Board of 

Elections. Ballot Boxes for additional locations may be approved from time-to-time 

pursuant to an addendum executed by the County Executive (or designee) and the Park 

District Board of Commissioners (or designee). The number and installation plan for 

additional Ballot Boxes is subject to approval by the Park District Board of 

Commissioners before any such installation shall be permitted. All design, construction, 

installation, and maintenance activity shall be at the County’s sole cost and expense.  

3.2 Identification and Inspection of Property or Right-of-Way. The County is solely 

responsible for determining whether the Property or Right-of-Way is safe, suitable, and 

appropriate for the installation, maintenance, and operation of a Ballot Box and shall 

inspect the Property or Right-of-Way prior to and subsequent to the installation of a 

Ballot Box to determine the suitability of the Property or Right-of-Way for any 

contemplated use and to identify any potential safety hazards or dangerous conditions. 

Once installation of a Ballot Box begins, the County certifies that it has inspected the 

Property or Right-of-Way and further certifies that the Property or Right-of-Way is safe 

for installation, maintenance, and operation of a Ballot Box. The County shall take all 

reasonable measures to protect citizens, volunteers, staff, participants, spectators, 

electors, voters, balloters, visitors, guests, officials, and like or similar persons, from 

known safety hazards or potential risks. The County shall promptly advise the Park 

District of any known safety hazard(s) or potentially dangerous condition(s) associated 

with the Property or Right-of-Way on which a Ballot Box is installed. 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

3 

3.3  Maintenance of Property or Right-of-Way and Ballot Box. The County shall maintain 

the Property or Right-of-Way and Ballot Box depicted in Exhibits A and B in a good and 

operating condition, free from accumulation of snow, ice, and debris. All maintenance, 

repair and replacement required under this Agreement will be performed in a timely and 

workmanlike manner at the sole cost and expense of the County. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall obligate the Park District to notify the County of the need for 

maintenance, repair, or replacement prior to the County’s completion of any 

maintenance, repair, or replacement in and around the Property or Right-of-Way and 

Ballot Box. Upon notice of termination of this Agreement, the County shall remove the 

Ballot Box subject to this Agreement within thirty (30) days, otherwise the Park District 

has the right to remove the Ballot Box and obtain from the County reimbursement for the 

costs of removal and restoration, which shall be paid within a reasonable time. 

3.4 Removal or Relocation. In the event that the Park District determines that it is 

reasonably necessary to remove or relocate a Ballot Box for the construction, repair, 

maintenance, or installation of any Park District improvement in or upon the Property or 

Right-of-Way, the County shall be required to do so at its sole cost within thirty (30) days 

of written notification of same. The County shall undertake such removal or relocation in 

good faith and in a reasonable and timely manner. This Section shall survive termination 

of this Agreement. 

3.5 Insurance. The County shall maintain Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance 

with a limit of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence and in the aggregate. The CGL 

insurance shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, 

and personal and advertising injury. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the 

CGL to make it excess over other available insurance. The “Park District of Champaign, 

its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers” shall be 

included as insured under the CGL insurance. The insurance shall apply as primary 

insurance A certificate of insurance together with applicable riders, endorsements, or 

additional insured terms demonstrating such insurance coverage shall be attached as 

Exhibit C. 

3.6 Assignment; Transfer. The privileges granted under this Agreement may not be 

assigned or transferred to any other governmental unit without the express written 

approval of the Park District. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Acceptance of payment from a person or entity other than the County shall not constitute 

a waiver of this provision. 

 

Article 4.   Indemnification.   

4.1 County Indemnification of Park District. The County will defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the Park District, its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, liabilities and 

expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that are 

incurred, sustained by, or claimed against the Park District in connection with any 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

4 

damages arising from this Agreement, including but not limited to loss of life, personal 

injury, infringement of rights, or property damage, arising from the exercise of the rights 

granted herein, except to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct 

of the Park District, or its contractors, agents, licensees or employees. This Section shall 

survive termination of this Agreement. In connection with any indemnification 

hereunder, the Park District will tender to the County the defense of any claim made 

against the Park District that is subject to indemnification hereunder in sufficient time to 

avoid prejudice to the County, for handling by counsel of the Park District’s selection and 

reasonably acceptable to the County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County retains 

all defenses and immunities provided by the Local Governmental and Governmental 

Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 

4.2 Park District Indemnification of the County. The Park District will defend, indemnify 

and hold harmless the County from and against all claims, damages, liabilities and 

expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that are 

sustained by the County in connection with any damages arising from this Agreement, 

which are caused or contributed to by the willful and wanton misconduct of the Park 

District, or its contractors, agents, licensees, or employees. In connection with any 

indemnification hereunder, the County will tender to the Park District the defense of any 

claim made against the County that is subject to indemnification hereunder in sufficient 

time to avoid prejudice to the Park District, for handling by counsel of the County’s 

selection and reasonably acceptable to the Park District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the Park District retains all defenses and immunities provided by the Local Governmental 

and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 

 

 

Article 5.   Default and Remedies.   

5.1 Breach or Default. Unless otherwise provided herein, in the event of a breach/default of 

this Agreement by a party, such breaching/defaulting party shall, upon written notice 

from the other party, cure or remedy such breach/default immediately. In the event the 

breaching/defaulting party has not cured the breach/default or made a good faith effort to 

do so within thirty (30) days of said notice, the aggrieved party may institute such 

proceedings as it deems necessary to cure and remedy such breach/default. Under no 

circumstances shall the County or a third party be entitled to damages in the form of 

specific performance, punitive damages, reliance, expectation, compensatory, or any 

other damages incurred or related to this Agreement. Uncured default by any party to this 

Agreement shall entitle the aggrieved party reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and related 

expenses directly incurred due the breach/default of this Agreement. 

5.2  Cumulative Remedies.  The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement shall be 

cumulative of each other and of rights and remedies under other provisions of applicable 

regulations and state and federal law. Exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not 

waive or bar exercise of any other, unless expressly waived in writing. 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

5 

 

Article 6.  Termination. 

6.1  Right of Termination.  Each party has the right to terminate all or part of this 

Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. 

 A. Rescission. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the grant of benefits 

to the County shall be rescinded pursuant to this Agreement. 

 B. Removal and Restoration. If this Agreement is terminated by either party or it is 

cancelled due to the County’s default or breach, then the County shall pay for the costs to 

remove the Ballot Box and restore the Property or Right-of-Way within thirty (30) days 

to at least as good a condition as it was existing prior to the construction, installation, 

maintenance and use of the Property or Right-of-Way by the County. Reimbursement of 

costs shall be undertaken pursuant to Section 3.3 herein. This Section and Section 4.1 

shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

  

Article 7. General Conditions. 

7.1  Applicable Laws. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not be 

construed to reduce the effectiveness of any laws, resolutions, or ordinances applicable to 

the County or Park District. Any claims arising directly or indirectly from this Agreement 

shall be litigated in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois in the Champaign 

County Circuit Court; provided that, the Parties shall first undertake Dispute Resolution 

pursuant to Section 7.6 of this Agreement. 

7.2 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the 

contracting parties, and nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or 

impliedly, to provide any right or benefit of any kind or character whatsoever to any 

person or entity who is not a party to this Agreement, or to acknowledge, establish, give 

rise to, or impose any legal duty to any third party. 

7.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid for any reason, such 

invalidation shall not render any other provision invalid if it can be given effect without 

the invalid provision. 

7.4  Merger.  This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions relating to the agreements 

of the parties, and no oral representations, covenants or agreements existing between the 

parties other than those herein stated. 

7.5  Time.  The parties agree that time is of the essence to the performance by said parties of  

 the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7.6 Dispute Resolution. In the event a dispute arises regarding the interpretation of the 
provisions of this Agreement, or breach thereof, the parties shall make a good faith 
effort to resolve such dispute. If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute within 
sixty (60) days from when written notice of such dispute was sent, then the parties 
shall submit the dispute to mediation. The selection of the mediator and the 
mediation process shall be governed by the rules of the Uniform Mediation Act, 710 
ILCS 35/1, et seq.  Each party shall bear its own costs, including half of the costs 
invoiced by the mediator.  If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through 
such mediation, then either of them may undertake litigation. 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

6 

7.7 Notice. Any notices or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered requiring a signed receipt, or (b) 

sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, or (c) sent by overnight delivery to the address of the respective Party set forth 

herein utilizing a reputable courier.  Such notice or communication shall be deemed given 

(i) if sent by personal delivery when delivered in person, (ii) if sent by certified or 

registered United States mail, four (4) days following deposit in the United States mail, or 

(iii) if sent by overnight delivery utilizing a reputable courier two (2) days following 

placement with such courier. Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice 

in the manner detailed in this Section. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, any notice 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent to the following:Any written notice under this 

Agreement shall be sent and be effective the day of mailing via certified mail, or upon 

personal service to the following parties as designated: 

 

  For the Park District: Executive Director 

     Champaign Park District 

     706 Kenwood Road 

     Champaign, IL 61820 

 

  For County:  County Executive 

     Champaign County 

     1776 East Washington Street 

     Urbana, Illinois 61802 

7.8 Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original. Facsimile, pdf, or other electronic signature (e.g., DocuSign) shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as an original ink signature. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Park District and the County have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by the parties effective as of the last dates written below. 

 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 

By: ______________________________ 

       County Executive 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

Approved as to form:  

          _____________________________ 

          State’s Attorney 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

By: _______________________________ 

       Executive Director 

Date: _____________________________ 

           

Approved as to form:  

          _____________________________ 

          Park District Attorney 



 
4887-3167-8564 

4887-3167-8564, v. 1 

8 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

A. Site Map  

B. Ballot Box Specifications 

C. Insurance Certificate 



4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

1 

ELECTION BALLOT BOX MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT 

(Champaign Park District – Champaign County) 

THIS ELECTION BALLOT BOX MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT is being made 

and entered into on the first date that it is fully executed by all of the parties hereto, by and 

between the CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT (“Park District”) and CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 

(“County”). 

WHEREAS, 10 ILCS 5/19-6 authorizes election authorities to establish secure collection 

sites for the postage-free return of vote by mail ballots. 

WHEREAS, the State Board of Elections has established additional guidelines for the 

security of such collection sites. 

WHEREAS, the guidelines include, among other things, the establishment of 24-hour 

ballot collection sites.  

WHEREAS, the County proposes to install a ballot box on a Park District Property or 

Right-of-Way. 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et. seq. and Section 

8-11 of the Illinois Park District Code, authorize the Park District to enter into agreements with

other governmental entities to permit the use of Park District property or rights-of-way for the

construction, operation, and use of facilities thereon.

WHEREAS, the desired location for the ballot box is depicted on the attached map, 

which may be updated from time to time, if more locations are added by agreement of the 

parties.  

WHEREAS, the Park District agrees to grant to the County a license to install a ballot 

box on a portion of Park District Property or Right-of-Way, subject to the conditions set forth 

herein and in compliance with applicable regulations and state and federal law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

covenants contained herein, the Park District and the County hereby agree as follows: 

Article 1.  Definitions.   

1.1 Agreement means this Election Ballot Box Master License Agreement made and entered 

into the date that it is fully executed by the parties.  

1.2 Ballot Box means the election ballot collection box, in-ground post, and concrete pad 

located and installed on a portion of Park District Property or Right-of-Way. 

1.3 Park District means the Park District of Champaign, Illinois.  

1.4 County means the Champaign County, a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois. 

1.5 Property or Right-of-Way means the portion of the street, sidewalk, parkway, or park 

owned and controlled by the Park District for public purposes. 

1.6 Site Map means the documents depicting the location of a Ballot Box. 

1.7 Site Plans means the design and construction plans to construct and install a Ballot Box. 



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

2 

Article 2.  Responsibilities of the Park District. 

2.1 Grant of License. The Park District grants to the County a license to construct, install, 

maintain and use a Ballot Box located in a section of Property or Right-of-Way as 

depicted in the Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit A. The footprint of the Ballot Box 

shall be no greater than 24” x 30” x 36”. Additional locations to construct, install, 

maintain, and use a Ballot Box may be approved from time-to-time by execution of an 

addendum signed by the County Executive (or designee) and the Park District’s 

Executive Director (or designee). The rights granted to the County shall be subordinate to 

the Park District’s use of the Property or Right-of-Way.   

2.2  Effective Date; Term. This Agreement shall be effective upon the date it is fully 

executed. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of two (2) years from the 

effective date and may be renewed by agreement of the parties for subsequent two (2) 

year terms, subject to the right of either party to terminate the agreement with thirty  (30) 

days’ written notice pursuant to the Termination provisions of Section 6.1 herein. This 

Agreement may be amended from time-to-time by further agreement of the parties. 

 

Article 3.  Responsibilities of the County. 

3.1 Ballot Box. The County agrees to install, maintain, and operate a Ballot Box as depicted 

in the Specifications attached hereto as Exhibit B and in accordance with 10 ILCS 5/19-

6€ as well as the associated guidelines published by the State Board of Elections. Ballot 

Boxes for additional locations may be approved from time-to-time pursuant to an 

addendum executed by the County Executive (or designee) and the Park District Board of 

Commissioners (or designee). The number and installation plan for additional Ballot 

Boxes is subject to approval by the Park District Board of Commissioners before any 

such installation shall be permitted. All design, construction, installation, and 

maintenance activity shall be at the County’s sole cost and expense.  

3.2 Identification and Inspection of Property or Right-of-Way. The County is solely 

responsible for determining whether the Property or Right-of-Way is safe, suitable, and 

appropriate for the installation, maintenance, and operation of a Ballot Box and shall 

inspect the Property or Right-of-Way prior to and subsequent to the installation of a 

Ballot Box to determine the suitability of the Property or Right-of-Way for any 

contemplated use and to identify any potential safety hazards or dangerous conditions. 

Once installation of a Ballot Box begins, the County certifies that it has inspected the 

Property or Right-of-Way and further certifies that the Property or Right-of-Way is safe 

for installation, maintenance, and operation of a Ballot Box. The County shall take all 

reasonable measures to protect citizens, volunteers, staff, participants, spectators, 

electors, voters, balloters, visitors, guests, officials, and like or similar persons, from 

known safety hazards or potential risks. The County shall promptly advise the Park 

District of any known safety hazard(s) or potentially dangerous condition(s) associated 

with the Property or Right-of-Way on which a Ballot Box is installed. 

3.3  Maintenance of Property or Right-of-Way and Ballot Box. The County shall maintain 

the Property or Right-of-Way and Ballot Box depicted in Exhibits A and B in a good and 



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

3 

operating condition, free from accumulation of snow, ice, and debris. All maintenance, 

repair and replacement required under this Agreement will be performed in a timely and 

workmanlike manner at the sole cost and expense of the County. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall obligate the Park District to notify the County of the need for 

maintenance, repair, or replacement prior to the County’s completion of any 

maintenance, repair, or replacement in and around the Property or Right-of-Way and 

Ballot Box. Upon notice of termination of this Agreement, the County shall remove the 

Ballot Box subject to this Agreement within thirty (30) days, otherwise the Park District 

has the right to remove the Ballot Box and obtain from the County reimbursement for the 

costs of removal and restoration, which shall be paid within a reasonable time. 

3.4 Removal or Relocation. In the event that the Park District determines that it is 

reasonably necessary to remove or relocate a Ballot Box for the construction, repair, 

maintenance, or installation of any Park District improvement in or upon the Property or 

Right-of-Way, the County shall be required to do so at its sole cost within thirty (30) days 

of written notification of same. The County shall undertake such removal or relocation in 

good faith and in a reasonable and timely manner. This Section shall survive termination 

of this Agreement. 

3.5 Insurance. The County shall maintain Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance 

with a limit of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence and in the aggregate. The CGL 

insurance shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, 

and personal and advertising injury. There shall be no endorsement or modification of the 

CGL to make it excess over other available insurance. The “Park District of Champaign, 

its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers” shall be 

included as insured under the CGL insurance. The insurance shall apply as primary 

insurance A certificate of insurance together with applicable riders, endorsements, or 

additional insured terms demonstrating such insurance coverage shall be attached as 

Exhibit C. 

3.6 Assignment; Transfer. The privileges granted under this Agreement may not be 

assigned or transferred to any other governmental unit without the express written 

approval of the Park District. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Acceptance of payment from a person or entity other than the County shall not constitute 

a waiver of this provision. 

 

Article 4.   Indemnification.   

4.1 County Indemnification of Park District. The County will defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the Park District, its commissioners, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, liabilities and 

expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that are 

incurred, sustained by, or claimed against the Park District in connection with any 

damages arising from this Agreement, including but not limited to loss of life, personal 

injury, infringement of rights, or property damage, arising from the exercise of the rights 

granted herein, except to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct 



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

4 

of the Park District, or its contractors, agents, licensees or employees. This Section shall 

survive termination of this Agreement. In connection with any indemnification 

hereunder, the Park District will tender to the County the defense of any claim made 

against the Park District that is subject to indemnification hereunder in sufficient time to 

avoid prejudice to the County, for handling by counsel of the Park District’s selection and 

reasonably acceptable to the County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County retains 

all defenses and immunities provided by the Local Governmental and Governmental 

Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 

4.2 Park District Indemnification of the County. The Park District will defend, indemnify 

and hold harmless the County from and against all claims, damages, liabilities and 

expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) that are 

sustained by the County in connection with any damages arising from this Agreement, 

which are caused or contributed to by the willful and wanton misconduct of the Park 

District, or its contractors, agents, licensees, or employees. In connection with any 

indemnification hereunder, the County will tender to the Park District the defense of any 

claim made against the County that is subject to indemnification hereunder in sufficient 

time to avoid prejudice to the Park District, for handling by counsel of the County’s 

selection and reasonably acceptable to the Park District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the Park District retains all defenses and immunities provided by the Local Governmental 

and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq. 

 

 

Article 5.   Default and Remedies.   

5.1 Breach or Default. Unless otherwise provided herein, in the event of a breach/default of 

this Agreement by a party, such breaching/defaulting party shall, upon written notice 

from the other party, cure or remedy such breach/default immediately. In the event the 

breaching/defaulting party has not cured the breach/default or made a good faith effort to 

do so within thirty (30) days of said notice, the aggrieved party may institute such 

proceedings as it deems necessary to cure and remedy such breach/default. Under no 

circumstances shall the County or a third party be entitled to damages in the form of 

specific performance, punitive damages, reliance, expectation, compensatory, or any 

other damages incurred or related to this Agreement. Uncured default by any party to this 

Agreement shall entitle the aggrieved party reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and related 

expenses directly incurred due the breach/default of this Agreement. 

5.2  Cumulative Remedies.  The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement shall be 

cumulative of each other and of rights and remedies under other provisions of applicable 

regulations and state and federal law. Exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not 

waive or bar exercise of any other, unless expressly waived in writing. 

 

Article 6.  Termination. 

6.1  Right of Termination.  Each party has the right to terminate all or part of this 

Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. 



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

5 

 A. Rescission. Upon termination of this Agreement by either party, the grant of benefits 

to the County shall be rescinded pursuant to this Agreement. 

 B. Removal and Restoration. If this Agreement is terminated by either party or it is 

cancelled due to the County’s default or breach, then the County shall pay for the costs to 

remove the Ballot Box and restore the Property or Right-of-Way within thirty (30) days 

to at least as good a condition as it was existing prior to the construction, installation, 

maintenance and use of the Property or Right-of-Way by the County. Reimbursement of 

costs shall be undertaken pursuant to Section 3.3 herein. This Section and Section 4.1 

shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

  

Article 7. General Conditions. 

7.1  Applicable Laws. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not be 

construed to reduce the effectiveness of any laws, resolutions, or ordinances applicable to 

the County or Park District. Any claims arising directly or indirectly from this Agreement 

shall be litigated in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois in the Champaign 

County Circuit Court; provided that, the Parties shall first undertake Dispute Resolution 

pursuant to Section 7.6 of this Agreement. 

7.2 Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the 

contracting parties, and nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or 

impliedly, to provide any right or benefit of any kind or character whatsoever to any 

person or entity who is not a party to this Agreement, or to acknowledge, establish, give 

rise to, or impose any legal duty to any third party. 

7.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid for any reason, such 

invalidation shall not render any other provision invalid if it can be given effect without 

the invalid provision. 

7.4  Merger.  This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions relating to the agreements 

of the parties, and no oral representations, covenants or agreements existing between the 

parties other than those herein stated. 

7.5  Time.  The parties agree that time is of the essence to the performance by said parties of  

 the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7.6 Dispute Resolution. In the event a dispute arises regarding the interpretation of the 
provisions of this Agreement, or breach thereof, the parties shall make a good faith 
effort to resolve such dispute. If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute within 
sixty (60) days from when written notice of such dispute was sent, then the parties 
shall submit the dispute to mediation. The selection of the mediator and the 
mediation process shall be governed by the rules of the Uniform Mediation Act, 710 
ILCS 35/1, et seq.  Each party shall bear its own costs, including half of the costs 
invoiced by the mediator.  If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute through 
such mediation, then either of them may undertake litigation. 

7.7 Notice. Any notices or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement 

shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered requiring a signed receipt, or (b) 

sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, or (c) sent by overnight delivery to the address of the respective Party set forth 



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

6 

herein utilizing a reputable courier.  Such notice or communication shall be deemed given 

(i) if sent by personal delivery when delivered in person, (ii) if sent by certified or 

registered United States mail, four (4) days following deposit in the United States mail, or 

(iii) if sent by overnight delivery utilizing a reputable courier two (2) days following 

placement with such courier. Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice 

in the manner detailed in this Section. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, any notice 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be sent to the following: 

 

  For the Park District: Executive Director 

     Champaign Park District 

     706 Kenwood Road 

     Champaign, IL 61820 

 

  For County:  County Executive 

     Champaign County 

     1776 East Washington Street 

     Urbana, Illinois 61802 

7.8 Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original. Facsimile, pdf, or other electronic signature (e.g., DocuSign) shall be 

deemed to have the same legal effect as an original ink signature. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Park District and the County have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by the parties effective as of the last date written below. 

 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 

By: ______________________________ 

       County Executive 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

Approved as to form:  

          _____________________________ 

          State’s Attorney 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

By: _______________________________ 

       Executive Director 

Date: _____________________________ 

           

Approved as to form:  

          _____________________________ 

          Park District Attorney 

           



 
4864-1812-8484, v. 1 

7 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

A. Site Map  

B. Ballot Box Specifications 

C. Insurance Certificate 

















The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

   

 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  May 24, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution on Forming Local Government Efficiency Committee 
 
Background 
The Decennial Committees on Local Government Efficiency Act, 50 ILCS 70/1, et seq., requires units 

of local government that levy any tax, including park districts, to form a committee to study local 

government efficiencies and issue a report to the County Board in which the unit of local government 

is situated. The Act does not apply to municipalities and counties. 

 

Although still an unfunded mandate, the law gives park districts the ability to appoint the committee 

membership and provides an opportunity for the park district to demonstrate the countless ways in 

which it efficiently and effectively delivers park, recreation, and cultural arts programs, facilities, and 

services to its residents. 

 

Units of local government are required to form a committee no later than June 10, 2023, which is one 

year after the effective date of the Act, and at least once every ten years thereafter. 

 

Committee Composition 

 

Each committee must include: 

• The elected or appointed members of the governing board of the governmental unit; 

• At least two residents of the governmental unit appointed by the Board president and 

approved by the board; and,  

• The chief executive officer or other officer of the governmental unit, if any. 
 

The Board President or their designee shall chair the committee. The chair may appoint additional 

members to the committee as they believe appropriate. Committee members serve without 

compensation but may be reimbursed for incurred expenses with the approval of the park district. 

 

The committee may, but is not required to, employ or use the services of specialists in public 

administration and governmental management, and any other trained consultants, analysts, 

investigators, and assistants it considers appropriate.  

 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

   

The committee is considered a public body to which the Freedom of Information Act and the Open 

Meetings Act apply. 
 

Duties of the Committee 

 

The duties of each committee include, but are not limited to, the following activities:  

• Study the governmental unit’s governing statutes, ordinances, rules, procedures, powers, 
jurisdiction, shared services, intergovernmental agreements, and interrelationships with other 

governmental units and the State of Illinois.  

• Collect data, research, and analysis as necessary to prepare a written report that includes 

recommendations with respect to increased accountability and efficiency. 

• Provide a written report to the administrative office of the county board in each county in which 

the governmental unit is located no later than eighteen months after the formation of the 

committee. 
 

Committee Meetings 

 

The committee is required to meet at least three times. The committee may, but is not required, to 

meet during the regularly scheduled meeting of the governmental units if:  

 

1. Separate notice is given in conformance with the Open Meetings Act.  

2. The committee meeting is listed as part of the board of the governmental unit’s agenda; and,  
3. At least a majority of the members of the committee are present at the committee’s meeting.  

 

However, because the committee’s membership is not identical to the park board membership, the 
park board would want to adjourn or recess its regular meeting before convening a meeting of the 

committee if it chooses to meet on the same day as a regularly scheduled meeting.  

 

Each meeting of the committee must be public and held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

The committee must provide an opportunity for any person to be heard at each meeting for at least 

three minutes. At the conclusion of each meeting, the committee must conduct a survey of residents 

who attended the meeting and ask for input on matters discussed at the meeting. Although not the 

required method, a survey conducted by email to all residents who attended the meeting and provided 

a valid email address is one way to satisfy this survey requirement. Pursuant to the Open Meetings 

Act, all public bodies must keep written minutes for each meeting of the committee. 

 

Committee Report 

 

Each committee must provide its report to the administrative office of the county board in each county 

in which the governmental unit is located no later than eighteen months after the formation of the 

committee. If a governmental unit is in multiple counties, it should provide the report to the 

administrative office of each county board in all counties in which the governmental unit is located. If 

the committee is formed on the last possible date (June 10, 2023), then the report would need to be 

provided no later than December 10, 2024. After the report is issued, the committee is dissolved until 

it is reestablished with newly appointed members in 10 years. 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

   

 

Illinois Association of Park District (IAPD) Resources 

IAPD has prepared resources to aid the Park District’s committee in this process including instructions 

templates and frequently ask questions reports. 

 

Prior Board Action 

None – Board Discussion at the May 10, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of a resolution on forming the Local Government Efficiency Committee.  
 
 
Prepared by:         Reviewed by: 
 
 
Sarah Sandquist, CPRE      Jarrod Scheunemann 
Executive Director       Director of Admin Services 
 



 

RESOLUTION  
FORMING A COMMITTTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

EFFICIENCY  
 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District (“Park District”) is required to form a 
Committee on Local Government Efficiency (“Efficiency Committee”) pursuant to 50 
ILCS 70/1 et seq. (the Act); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Efficiency Committee shall: (1) study the Park 
District’s governing statutes, ordinances, rules, procedures, powers, jurisdiction, shared 
services, intergovernmental agreements, and interrelationships with other governmental 
units and the State of Illinois, (2) collect data, research, and analysis as necessary to 
prepare a written report that includes recommendations with respect to increased 
accountability and efficiency, and (3) provide a written report to the administrative office 
of each county board of the county in which the governmental unit is located; and 

WHEREAS, the Efficiency Committee shall consist of the elected or appointed 
members of the Board of Commissioners of the Park District, at least two residents from 
the district appointed by the President of the Board of Commissioners and approved by 
the Board of Commissioners, and the chief executive officer or other officer of the Park 
District, if any; and 

WHEREAS, The President desires to appoint _______________________________ 

and _______________________________  as the two resident members of the 
Efficiency Committee, with the advice and consent of the Board of Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, the Efficiency Committee shall meet at least three times and shall operate 
as a public body pursuant to the Open Meetings Act and Freedom of Information Act; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Efficiency Committee shall provide a written report to the administrative 
office of the Champaign County Board no later than eighteen months after the day of 
the Efficiency Committee’s formation; and 

WHEREAS, the Efficiency Committee will be dissolved after it has made a written report 
to the Champaign County Board and all other statutory requirements have been 
satisfied; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Champaign Park District as follows: 

SECTION 1: That the Board of Commissioners hereby forms its Committee on Local 
Government Efficiency consisting of the following individuals: 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF BOARD PRESIDENT] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF COMMISSIONER] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF COMMISSIONER] 



 
• ________________________________ [NAME OF COMMISSIONER] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF COMMISSIONER] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF RESIDENT MEMBER] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF RESIDENT MEMBER] 

• ________________________________ [NAME OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER]  

SECTION 2: That __________________________________ shall serve as the 
chairperson of the Efficiency Committee; and 

SECTION 3: That the Park District’s Board Secretary, Open Meetings Act Officer, and 
Freedom of Information Act Officer shall serve the Efficiency Committee in those 
respective roles; and 

SECTION 4:  That the Efficiency Committee shall perform its duties in accordance with 
50 ILCS 70/1 et seq.; and 

SECTION 5:  That the Board of Commissioners shall provide a written report to the 
Champaign County Board no later than ___________ [MONTH, DAY], 2024, which is 
eighteen months after the day of the Efficiency Committee’s formation. 

DATED this _____ day of _________________, 2023. 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
[SEAL] 

By: _________________________ 
Board President 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Board Secretary 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 
 
DATE: May 17, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Approval to Accept Proposal for 2023-2025 Auditing Services with an option to 

extend for an additional three-year term 
 
Background 
The Park District was notified in mid-March that the current auditor was not able to continue 
performing the auditing services for the Park District due to staffing shortages and prior 
commitments. Staff put together a request for proposal for auditing services and sent it out May 2, 
2023. A notice was published in The News Gazette, and bids were due May 17, 2023. 
 
Proposals were requested from the following certified public accounting firms in response to the 
auditing services RFP. These results were as follows: 

CPA Firm District Foundation

Total for 

FYE2023-

2025

Total for 

FYE2026-

2028
BKD n/a n/a n/a n/a

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP n/a n/a n/a n/a

Lauterbach & Amen 32,800$    6,600$       123,100$ 130,800$  

RSM McGladrey Declined Declined n/a n/a

Sikich Declined Declined n/a n/a  
 
The Executive Director and Director of Finance have reviewed the proposals received and concur 
that the firm is fully capable of performing a high-quality audit. For comparison, the audit fees paid 
related to FYE22 were $32,100 for the Park District and $8,335 for the Foundation (including the tax 
return preparation); while the total for the last three years was $78,630 and $24,805, respectively. 
The two firms that declined did not have the staffing or availability to meet the timelines in the RFP. 
 
Budget Impact 
Proposed tax revenues for FYE23-25 will cover the Park District fees for the full amount. The 
Foundation fees will be covered by the Foundation for FYE23-25 using unrestricted receipts. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the Board accept the quote for auditing services from Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
and authorize the Executive Director to enter into the initial contract term of three (3) years (or 
FYE23-25) in the amount of $123,100, with the option to extend for an additional three (3) years (or 
FYE26-28) in the amount of $138,600. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Sarah Sandquist, CPRE 
Director of Finance Executive Director  



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 

 

FROM: Sarah Sandquist, Executive Director 

 

DATE: May 16, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Prairie Farm Restroom/Pavilion 

 Park and Recreation Facility Construction (PARC) Grant Application 

 

Background 

The PARC grant program is offered through the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) 

which provides 75% funding assistance to units of local government. The application cycle for the 

PARC Grants is currently open until June 15, 2023, with $28 million in total funding available. The 

objective of the reimbursement grant program is to support capital facilities consisting of buildings, 

structures, and land for park, recreation purposes. The aim of discussion is to solicit Commissioner 

input regarding submittal of a PARC Grant application for design and construction of a 4000 square 

foot +/- restroom/pavilion building at Prairie Farm within Centennial Park. Over time the need for a 

restroom/pavilion facility at Prairie Farm is broadly understood, but its inclusion on the Park District's 

Capital Improvement Plan has been inconsistent. Design and construction of it have appeared and 

reappeared in some combination over the years, and as staff continue formulating a Prairie Farm 

Comprehensive Plan, the need for a restroom/pavilion space to host a variety of year-round 

programming and special events remains central and steady. 

 

Discussion and Recommendation 

A successful $1M grant award for the design and construction of a restroom/pavilion facility would see 

the project on the FYE 2025 Capital Plan with at $750K reimbursement in subsequent years.  

Generally speaking, staff envision a metal building in the agricultural vernacular with overhead doors 

giving access to adjacent outdoor spaces. The intent is to offer warm indoor space during the cold 

seasons, and naturally ventilated cover and shade during the summer. The main gathering space 

would provide maximum programmatic flexibility with adjoining storage spaces. The secure restrooms 

would encourage park visitors, particularly those families with young children, to spend more time at 

Prairie Farm and the nearby little league fields. The intent of discussion is to listen to overall 

Commissioner thoughts with the aim of gaining Board consensus and direction in considering Board 

action at the June Regular Meeting. 

 

Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 

 

 

Andrew Weiss      Sarah Sandquist 

Director of Planning     Executive Director 

 


	5.24.23 Agenda
	OpenGov Presentation
	Skelton License Agreement Amendment
	1991 Skelton License Agreement
	Edit - License Amendment

	Skelton Park IGA
	Edit - IGA Skelton Park
	Clean - IGA Skelton Park

	Amendment Agreement with VCC
	Porter Park Lights Memo
	BS&A Cloud Memo
	BS&A Proposal Attachment

	Ballot Boxes Memo
	Ballot Boxes Agreement Edit Attachment
	Ballot Boxes Agreement Clean Attachment
	Ballot Boxes Agreement Exhibits A, B, & C Attachment

	Local Gov Effiency Committee Memo
	Resolution Attachment

	Audit Services Memo
	PARC Grant Discussion Memo

